
*  *   *   PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE   *  *   * 

Butler County Regional Transit Authority 

Board of Trustees 

The BCRTA Board of Trustees is scheduled to meet on 

Wednesday, January 15, 2020 in the Board Room of the 

Butler County Regional Transit Authority Main Offices at 

3045 Moser Court, Hamilton, Ohio 45011 at 8:00 a.m. 

In accordance with the American Disabilities Act, if anyone has a 

disability and requires assistance or, in accordance with the Limited 

English Proficiency Executive Order, requires translation services, 

please call Ms. Vonda Partin at 513.785.5226 or 800.750.0750 (Ohio 

Relay Service). 

For questions or more information regarding this meeting please 

call 513.785.5226 or e-mail partinv@butlercountyrta.com. 



BUTLER COUNTY REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD OF TRUSTEES  
January 15, 2020, 8:00 AM 

Butler County Regional Transit Authority 
3045 Moser Court • Hamilton • Ohio • 45011 

 

Next Meeting Date: 
February 19, 2019 @ 8:00 AM 

Butler County Regional Transit Authority Board Room 
3045 Moser Court, Hamilton, OH  45011 

PRELIMINARY AGENDA 

I. Call to Order & Roll 

II. Consideration of Absences 

III. Approval of the Agenda (Motion Requested) 

IV. Approval of the November 20, 2019 Meeting Minutes (Motion Requested) 

V. Comments from Citizens 

VI. Secretary/Treasurer’s Report – October & November 2019 (Motion Requested) 

VII. Committee & Staff Reports 

a. OKI 

b. Metrics 

c. Nominating Committee 

VIII. Governance 

a. Oath of Office – Ms. Nancy Schmitt 

b. Election of Officers 

IX. Director’s Report 
a. TABC 5310 Program Application 
b. Future Legislation 

i. EEO Program Update 

X. Action Items 

a. Resolution 20-01-01:  Updating Board Policy 6-10 Conflict of Interest 
 

b. Resolution 20-01-02:  Updating Board Policy 6-03 Procurements 

c. Resolution 20-01-03:  Establishing and Supporting Ohio Public Transit  
  Association’s “OHIO LOVES TRANSIT DAY.” 



BUTLER COUNTY REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD OF TRUSTEES  
January 15, 2020, 8:00 AM 

Butler County Regional Transit Authority 
3045 Moser Court • Hamilton • Ohio • 45011 

 

Next Meeting Date: 
February 19, 2019 @ 8:00 AM 

Butler County Regional Transit Authority Board Room 
3045 Moser Court, Hamilton, OH  45011 

d. Resolution 20-01-04: Authorizing the Executive Director to Execute a Contract 
   for Vinyl Vehicle Wrapping. 

e. Resolution 20-01-05: Authorizing the Executive Director to Execute the Purchase 
   and Installation of Mobile Ticketing Validators, Warranties, 
   and Required Implementation Services. 

 
 

XI. Adjourn (Motion Requested) 



11/20/2019

Jan *Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

Bautz, Travis X X X X X X E X X

Chandler, Jessica X X X E X X X X A

Fehr, David A X X X X X X X X

Foster, Jim X X X X X X X X X

Gordon, Perry X X X X X X X X X

Lawson, Chris E X X X X X X X X

Scott Jones, Anita X E X E E X A A A

VACANT X X X E N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Watt, Corey X X X X X E X X X

X = Present E = Excused A = Absent *2/20/2019 Canceled for Snow Day

Date:  6/19/2019-Will be held at MetroParks of Butler County Ohio, River Center, Great Miami Room, 120 South Carmody Blvd., Middletown, OH  45044

2019 Butler County RTA Board of Trustees Attendance



November 20th, 2019 BCRTA Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 

Page 1 

Butler County Regional Transit Authority 
Board of Trustees Meeting 

Wednesday, November 20, 2019 
^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 

The BCRTA Board of Trustees met on Wednesday, November 20th, 2019 at 8:04 AM at the Butler County Regional 
Transit Authority, 3045 Moser Court, Hamilton, OH  45011.  Proper public notice was given in advance of the 
meeting.   

PRESENT: Chris Lawson, President (8:09 AM) 
Perry Gordon, Vice President 
Travis Bautz 
David Fehr 
Jim Foster 
Corey Watt 

STAFF: Matthew Dutkevicz, Executive Director 
Delene Weidner, Director of Finance & Administration 
[DBELO] 
Robert Ruzinsky, Capital Projects Advisor 
Vonda Partin, Administrative Assistant 
Luke Morgan, Operations Manager 
Mark Franklin, Operations Manager 

ABSENT:           Jessica Chandler 
Anita Scott Jones 

OTHERS 
PRESENT: 

 
None 

CITIZENS: None Present 
LEGAL 

COUNSEL: 
 
Gary Becker, Dinsmore 

I. Call to Order & Roll Call
Mr. Gordon called the meeting to order at 8:04 AM.  Mr. Dutkevicz took a roll call.  A quorum of the 
Board was present.   

II. Consideration of Absences
Mr. Dutkevicz advised there was one request for an excused absence today, Ms. Jessica Chandler and 
one unrequested, Mrs. Anita Scott Jones.  Mr. Foster made a motion to accept the excused absence 
and Mr. Bautz seconded the motion.  The absence was excused. 

III. Approval of the Agenda
Mr. Lawson  requested a motion to approve the agenda.  Mr. Watt made a motion to accept the 
agenda and Mr. Bautz seconded the motion.  The agenda was approved. 

IV. Approval of the October 16, 2019 Meeting Minutes
Mr. Lawson requested a motion to approve the October 16, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes.  Mr. Foster 
made a motion to approve the October 16, 2019 meeting minutes.  Mr. Fehr seconded the motion.   
The minutes were approved. 

V. Comments from Citizens
No citizens were present. 

VI. Secretary/Treasurer’s Report
September 2019 statements were included in the packet.  For the year-end August, BCRTA shows a 
gain of just over $88.9 including local depreciation.  Revenues are slightly over budget as and 
expenses for the year remain under budget for the year as the website renovation continues and less 



November 20th, 2019 BCRTA Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
Page 2 

parts and contract maintenance on the revenue vehicles have been needed.  Wages are currently 
over budget because of an influx of trainees that are not yet offsetting the overtime worked by 
current staff.   BCRTA is also over budget in the insurance line due to the payment of a special 
assessment to OTRP to close loss year 2013.  

The transaction log was included in the packet presenting all cash transactions for the month.  The 
balance sheet was presented with normal balances for assets, as well as liabilities and equity. Funds 
currently held in the Reserve ACA Fines will be reduced at the end of the year due to the lower than 
expected payment of the 2017 fine. 

Available funds were approximately $1.69M.  Board reserves were approximately $1.63M with a 
required match on the local grant obligations of $443K.  The resulting non-restricted funds of $59K 
are what BCRTA would like to see grow for any needed funding for the Chestnut facility.  BCRTA is 
currently able to fund the local share of all 2019 projects and those for 2020. 

Ms. Weidner proposed a $6.46 million dollar revenue budget and a $6.17 million dollar expense 
budget for 2020.  This is a $452K increase in expenses when compared to 2019, due to predicted 
increases in service levels with newly approved $5 fare rate for Butler County.  Ms. Weidner reported 
that BCRTA should end 2019 with a projected gain of $316K which is about $45K over budget.  This 
overage is due mostly to the increase in service provided at both MTS and Miami University. 

Appropriations are estimated to be just over $10M for 2020.  This includes the $6.17M in budgeted 
expenses as well as $2.5M in revenue vehicle purchases, $694K in facility improvements and planning 
for the Chestnut facility, and $454K in equipment and technology.  Capital items will be funded with 
Federal Capital Grant funds of $2.6M and State and Other Capital Grant funds (EPA VW funds) of 
$207K 

Mr. Lawson requested a motion to approve the September 2019 Secretary/Treasurer’s Report.  Mr. 
Gordon made a motion to approve the September 2019 Secretary/Treasurer’s Report.  Mr. Fehr 
seconded the motion.   The report was approved. 

a. Resolution No. 19-11-01:  Adoption of the FY2020 Accrual Operating Budget for the Butler
County Regional Transit Authority (BCRTA).

Mr. Lawson requested a motion to accept Resolution 19-11-01.  Mr. Foster made a motion to
approve and Mr. Watt seconded the motion.

Upon a call of the roll, the vote resulted as follows:

Mr. Bautz YES 

Ms. Chandler ABSENT 

Mr. Fehr YES 

Mr. Foster YES 

Mr. Gordon YES 

Mr. Lawson YES 

Ms. Scott Jones ABSENT 

Mr. Watt YES 



November 20th, 2019 BCRTA Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
Page 3 

The resolution was adopted. 

b. Resolution No. 19-11-02:  Authorization of FY2020 Appropriations and Acceptance of the Butler
County Regional Transit Authority (BCRTA) Fiscal Officer’s Certification of Funds and Estimation
of Revenues.

Mr. Lawson requested a motion to accept Resolution 19-11-02.  Mr. Fehr made a motion to 
approve and Mr. Gordon seconded the motion. 

Upon a call of the roll, the vote resulted as follows: 

Mr. Bautz YES 

Ms. Chandler ABSENT 

Mr. Fehr YES 

Mr. Foster YES 

Mr. Gordon YES 

Mr. Lawson YES 

Ms. Scott Jones ABSENT 

Mr. Watt YES 

The resolution was adopted. 

VII. Committee & Staff Reports - September 2019

A. OKI
Mr. Lawson shared that last week’s OKI meeting contained a nice tribute to Todd Portune.   The

2050 Metropolitan Transportation Plan was introduced.

B. Metrics:
Mr. Morgan provided the September 2019 Metrics Report as follows:

Passengers Per Revenue Hour 
BCRTA Fixed Route service passengers per revenue hour decreased by 38.5 percent over 
September 2018.  This is due to the reclassification of the R1, R3, R4 and R6 from Commuter 
Routes to Fixed routes.  We are now dividing the passenger counts by many more fixed route 
hours.  

Commuter Route service increased slightly.  Commuter Route service passengers per revenue 
hour increased by 2.8 percent during the month of September.  



November 20th, 2019 BCRTA Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
Page 4 

Demand Response (DR) productivity increased by 5.9 percent for passengers per revenue hour.  
Also, BCRTA has launched the BCRTA BGo mobile app that will make booking trips easy.  We are 
directing SafeRide callers to the App to free up phone lines and to streamline trip booking.  This 
will also allow clients to pay their fare with a credit card in advance.  

Cost per Passenger (Blended) total cost/ passengers.  
The cost per passenger has increased by $1.09 or 22.3 percent comparing last September to this 
September.  This is due to operations expenses (wages).  

Admin/ Overhead Cost per Revenue Hour.  
Overhead cost has increased by an average of $1.19 or 9.2 percent.  We are paying the 
maintenance fees for Ecolane and Doublemap.  This is the demand response and fixed route 
software.  BCRTA made one payment for our new website design.  We have also made the 
payment for our new PowerApp complaint form.  

Butler County RTA Accidents/ Injuries  
BCRTA accidents/injuries increased this September.  In September 2018 BCRTA had four non-
reportable at fault accidents and two no-fault, non-reportable accidents.  In September of 2019 
BCRTA had a total of four at fault, non-reportable accidents (two mirror clips, and two passenger 
falls).  One no-fault, non-major, and two no-fault, non-reportable accidents (BCRTA was vehicle 
rear ended, passenger fell exiting the vehicle).  

Average Fleet Age (in years) 
In September you will notice a decrease in the average fleet age as compared to the prior year.  
BCRTA has disposed of vehicles that have met their useful life and added new vehicles since last 
September.  The average age has dropped to 4.07 years, this is a decrease of 6%.  

Road Calls  
In September of 2018 BCRTA had one road call.  This number has increased in 2019. BCRTA had a 
total of two road calls in September 2019.  The fixed route experienced one road call, 1609  
was involved in an accident and the front passenger door glass was damaged.  The commuter 
routes also experienced one road call, vehicle 1521 had a broken exhaust and brake line.  

Park & Ride  
This service reflects the ridership on the 42x. The 42x has experienced a 12.2% increase in 
ridership as compared to last September.  The cost of fuel typically affects the ridership of the 
park and ride routes.  Typically, when fuel costs are low, ridership decreases.  The average retail 
price for gasoline in September of 2018 was $2.91 according to the EIA.  The average retail price 
for gasoline in September of 2019 was $2.49.  This has been the trend for the previous two 
months and we are suspecting this is due to local job growth.  

Noteworthy Updates 
Demand Response Statistics to date 93% OTP at 1.69 trips per hour.  BCRTA is now utilizing both 
the TransitApp and the BCRTA BGo App.  The BCRTA BGo App recently broke 100 active accounts 
and is being pushed to all callers. 



Page 5 

VIII. Director’s Report

I. Metrics & Service

BGO APP 
Staff are launching the new scheduling and payment app for the door-to-door BGO service this 
month.  Testing has already begun, and existing riders received a letter the week of Oct. 14.  Shawn 
Cowan will be conducting some additional marketing to share the news. 

BGo Pilot 
Since August, BCRTA has been piloting a countywide BGO program with flat $5.00 fares with select 
employers and agencies.  This trial was in response to the success of BCRTA’s Job Shuttle program 
with $5.00 fares in addition to the feedback and goals in the OKI Coordinated Human Services 
Transportation plan outlining affordability as a main issue.  Staff is proposing an expansion of the 
program pending budget finalization with the approval of the BCRTA Board.  FYI - $5.00 fares do not 
cover 30% of most trips as dictated by BCRTA Board of Trustees historic mandate. 

5 422 344 4,696 10,373 

96,693 

 -

 100,000

 200,000

 300,000

 400,000

 500,000

 600,000

 $30.00  $25.00  $20.00  $15.00  $10.00  $5.00  $1.00

Tr
ip

s

Fare

2009-2018  Total Historic Demand by Price

2009-2018  Trips by Fare
Quantity

Exp Trend



November 20th, 2019 BCRTA Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
Page 6 

BCDD 
BCDD has contacted BCRTA and requested a proposal to provide “choice transportation.”  This is 
similar to the arrangement BCRTA had with BCDD several years ago where families could choose from 
a pool of eligible transportation providers at predetermined rates.  BCDD moved to a single provider 
system at the suggestion of their auditor during the last solicitation but intends to return to the 
“choice” model in FY 2020.  Staff intend to submit a proposed scope that is equivalent to the 
proposed general public BGO service.  Authorization to negotiate a contract is included in the 
November agenda. 

BGo Denials 

August 2019 

September 2019 

October 2019 



November 20th, 2019 BCRTA Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
Page 7 

Half Fare for Veterans 
In accordance with the directives of the BCRTA Board of Trustees following the May regular meeting, 
BCRTA staff has negotiated a 50% discount with BCVSC for fixed route bus fares not to exceed 
$24,999, beginning in 2020. 

II. Staffing & Facility

Staffing 
BCRTA is currently seeking CDL and non-CDL drivers, maintenance technicians, and an operations 
supervisor.  Mark Franklin has been promoted to the role of Operation Manager overseeing BCRTA’s 
Oxford operation. 

Additionally, BCRTA’s new self-guided training program appears to be working out well. BCRTA has 
been hiring an increasing number of reduced hour workers in addition to five new Work+ students.  
Significant changes in advertising, sign-on bonus and referral bonus structure have also been helpful 
in increasing capture and retention of new vehicle operator applicants. 

III. Planning

Chestnut Street Multimodal Station 
BCRTA was awarded $2.6M in 5339 funds in April 2018 to be put toward the facility.  The project is 
still $4.6M short of being fully funded.  Grants are currently pending with FTA’s 5339 Bus & Bus 
Facilities program, OKI’s CMAQ/STP program, and BCRTA is negotiating an arrangement with the City 
of Middletown for potentially lapsing MTS funds of more than $1.3M. 

Information regarding conceptual plans and estimates on the Chestnut Street Multimodal Station is 
available at http://www.butlercountyrta.com/oxfordfacility.   

Regional Cooperation & NEORide 
www.EZfare.us and Transit app with EZFare launched October 23. Between October 23 and Nov 6, 
BCRTA and MTS transacted 409 purchases for a total of $2,093.00 in sales. 

42X 
BCRTA staff has received pricing from Cincinnati Metro for 2020 service. Costs reflect about an 8% 
increase, no reduction or sharing of expenses.  BCRTA staff also met with West Chester Township 
staff to discuss funding and impact of the 42X.  No decisions or preferences were made. Staff 
recommend continuing the contract in 2020 and aggressive pursuit of a cost-sharing model in 2021. 

Chestnut Fields Multimodal Station & Shared Service Facility 
BCRTA staff have been working closely with BCRTA legal counsel and Miami University to begin 
negotiating a land use/lease agreement and joint development agreement for the construction of the 
proposed facility. 

BCRTA has drafted proposed documents and is working to connect with Miami for review and 
negotiation in anticipating of beginning planning in early-mid 2020. 

http://www.butlercountyrta.com/oxfordfacility
http://www.butlercountyrta.com/oxfordfacility
http://www.ezfare.us/
http://www.ezfare.us/


November 20th, 2019 BCRTA Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
Page 8 

IV. Outreach & Communications

I-75 WorkLink Corridor
WorkLink partners are evaluating the R7 this month after one year of operation.  BCRTA will propose
more efficient alternatives to the stakeholders before the end of the year.

List of Influencers 
As part of addressing BCRTA’s newly proposed vision, I would like to gather a list of relationships and 
influencers that our organization and Board of Trustees believe they can leverage if needed. I am 
asking staff and trustees to share persons and position/title information so we may create a database 
that may be used to influence decisions and opinions regarding BCRTA and public transit in our area.  
Please email Vonda Partin with your information:  partinv@butlercountyrta.com. 

V. Funding & Discretionary Grant Availability

$70M for Transit (HB 62) – Ohio Transit Partnership Program Grants 
State funding awards were made October 25, 2019. BCRTA received $305,653 in Urban Transit 
Program funds, $3,611 in Elderly and Disabled Subsidies, and $474,383 in discretionary Transit 
Partnership Program (OTP2) funds for operating assistance and bus replacement match. 

State Rural Transit Funding, Section 5311 
BCRTA applied to ODOT’s rural transit program this summer to fund a portion of the Chestnut Fields 
Multimodal Station & Shared Service Facility. ODOT asked that BCRTA apply instead to state 5339 
funds for rural and small urban agencies bus and bus facilities.  BCRTA did not receive a rural program 
award. Staff plan to reallocate other funds in light of the other ODOT awards made to BCRTA to help 
address Chestnut facility needs. 

5339 Bus and Bus Facilities 
Staff completed an application requesting the unfunded portion of the Chestnut Fields Multimodal 
Station & Shared Services Facility. Application were due June 21, 2019.  Awards are expected before 
Spring 2020. 

CMAQ/STP 
BCRTA applied locally to OKI for the unfunded portion of the Chestnut Fields Multimodal Station & 
Shared Services Facility. OKI reports they received twenty-one applications totaling more than $75M.  
On September 10, the OKI Prioritization Subcommittee scored BCRTA’s application with 74 points, 
more than any other local project!  Awards are still subject to statewide scoring and prioritization 
later this year before official awards are made.  Final decisions should be made after December 
following the statewide prioritization subcommittee meeting.  Kudos to John Gardocki for completing 
this grant application. 

VI. On the Horizon …

Employee Appreciation Brunch and Annual Meeting 
The Employee Appreciation Brunch and Annual meeting will be held Sunday, January 19, 2020 from 
1:00 to 3:00 PM at the Fitton Center for the Creative Arts, 101 South Monument Street, Hamilton, OH  

mailto:partinv@butlercountyrta.com
mailto:partinv@butlercountyrta.com


November 20th, 2019 BCRTA Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
Page 9 

45011.  The caterer will be the same as last year (A Catered Affair).  Please join us if you are able.  An 
e-mail invite will go out soon with the invite form to fill out and send back to Vonda Partin
(partinv@butlercountyrta.com).  RSVP by Friday, January 3, 2020, please.

City of Middletown 
Middletown City Council is pursuing the removal of Doug Adkins, City Manager.  BCRTA’s main point 
of contact, Susan Cohen has been appointed acting City Manager.  No major changes are expected to 
BCRTA’s relationship with the City at this time.  However, several mutual arrangements with pending 
decisions may be delayed until after new leadership is appointed.  This could include the City’s 
pending transportation/transit study, WorkLink, and the transfer of potentially lapsing MTS 5307 
funds to be used towards the Chestnut Fields project. 

New Website 
Keep your eye out for a new BCRTA website!  Launch should take place late in 2019 but may not 
happen now until early February 2020 with the recent Kincaid wildfires in wine country near our 
website developers who had to be evacuated for a while. 

As Ohio’s public transit innovator, BCRTA provides smart mobility options and infrastructure that 
seamlessly connect people to employers, educational, healthcare, and recreational destinations. 

• Leverage competitive federal funding and forge mutually beneficial partnerships with
organizations, including incubators, chambers, universities, start-ups, economic
development bodies, and planning professionals.

• Enhance connectivity with constituents by leading in the implementation of new transit tech
(onboard Wi-Fi tools).

• Improve mobility access and eliminate barriers to ridership, especially for riders who may
be elderly or have disabilities.

• Support employers with effective workforcetransportation in at least 75% of Butler County’s
densest corridors.

• Develop multimodal infrastructure and wayfinding to create seamless user experiences.

G. BGO Geographic Expansion & Fare Reduction

Mr. Foster  made a motion to allow BCRTA staff to modify BGo fare structure including fare 
structure including fare subsidies greater than 70% of total trip cost for regular BGO trips 
within Butler County.  Mr. Bautz  seconded the motion.  The motion passed. 

H. Butler County Board of DD

Mr. Bautz made a motion to authorize BCRTA Executive Director to negotiate a service 
contract, subject to legal review, with the Buler County Board of Developmental Disabilities 
(BCDD) to provide BGO service to BCDD constituents.  Mr. Watt seconded the motion.  The 
motion passed. 

I. BCRTA Employee Annual Holiday Bonus (not originally in the packet)

mailto:partinv@butlercountyrta.com


November 20th, 2019 BCRTA Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
Page 10 

Mr. Bautz made a motion to authorize BCRTA Executive Director to grant all BCRTA staff the 
usual $75 annual holiday bonus (which is already built into the budget).   Mr. Watt seconded 
the motion.  The motion passed. 

IX. Governance

A. Approval of the 2020 Meeting Calendar
No meetings in July and December 2020.  Mr. Gordon  made a motion to approve the 2020
Meeting Calendar.  Mr. Foster seconded the motion.  The motion passed. 

B. 2020 Appointments

1. OKI Board Representative & Alternate
Mr. Lawson was appointed to continue on as the OKI Board Representative.  Mr.
Dutkevicz was appointed as the alternate.  Mr. Fehr made a motion to approve the OKI
board representative and alternate.  Mr. Foster seconded the motion.  The motion
passed.

2. Chairperson – Audit, Procurement & Finance Committee
Mr. Foster was appointed to continue on as the Chairperson – Audit, Procurement &
Finance Committee.  Mr. Bautz made a motion to approve the appointment.  Mr. Watt
seconded the motion.  The motion passed.

X. Executive Session

To consider the appointment, employment, dismissal, discipline, promotion or compensation of a 

public employee or official. 

Mr. Gordon made a motion to enter Executive Session.  Mr. Fehr seconded the motion. 

Upon a call of the role, the vote resulted as follows: 

Mr. Bautz YES 

Ms. Chandler ABSENT 

Mr. Fehr YES 

Mr. Foster YES 

Mr. Gordon YES 

Mr. Lawson YES 

Ms. Scott Jones ABSENT 

Mr. Watt YES 

Executive session commenced at 9:10 AM. 



November 20th, 2019 BCRTA Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
Page 11 

Mr. Watt made a motion to end the Executive Session and Mr. Foster seconded the motion. 

Upon a call of the roll, the vote resulted as follows: 

Mr. Bautz YES 

Ms. Chandler ABSENT 

Mr. Fehr YES 

Mr. Foster YES 

Mr. Gordon YES 

Mr. Lawson YES 

Ms. Scott Jones ABSENT 

Mr. Watt YES 

Executive session concluded at 9:36 AM. 

XI. Action Items

c. Resolution No. 19-11-03:  Confirmation of Board Policy 6-02 Investments.

Mr. Lawson requested a motion to accept Resolution 19-11-03.  Mr. Watt made a motion to
approve and Mr. Gordon seconded the motion.

Upon a call of the roll, the vote resulted as follows:

Mr. Bautz YES 

Ms. Chandler ABSENT 

Mr. Fehr YES 

Mr. Foster YES 

Mr. Gordon YES 

Mr. Lawson YES 

Ms. Scott Jones ABSENT 

Mr. Watt YES 

The resolution was adopted. 

d. Resolution No. 19-11-04:  Confirmation of Board Policy 6-08 Reserves.

Mr. Lawson requested a motion to accept Resolution 19-11-04.  Mr. Foster made a motion to
approve and Mr. Watt seconded the motion.

Upon a call of the roll, the vote resulted as follows:



November 20th, 2019 BCRTA Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
Page 12 

Mr. Bautz YES 

Ms. Chandler ABSENT 

Mr. Fehr YES 

Mr. Foster YES 

Mr. Gordon YES 

Mr. Lawson YES 

Ms. Scott Jones ABSENT 

Mr. Watt YES 

The resolution was adopted. 

e. Resolution No. 19-11-05:  Authorizing the BCRTA Executive Director to Execute an Agreement
with SORTA for the Provision of 2020 Park-and-Ride Services in Butler County.

Mr. Lawson requested a motion to accept Resolution 19-11-05.  Mr. Foster made a motion to
approve and Mr. Gordon seconded the motion.

Upon a call of the roll, the vote resulted as follows:

Mr. Bautz YES 

Ms. Chandler ABSENT 

Mr. Fehr YES 

Mr. Foster YES 

Mr. Gordon YES 

Mr. Lawson YES 

Ms. Scott Jones ABSENT 

Mr. Watt ABSTAIN 

The resolution was adopted. 

f. Resolution No. 19-11-06:  Authorizing the Appointment of an Alternative Trustee to the Board
of Trustees of the Ohio Transit Risk Pool (OTRP).

Mr. Lawson requested a motion to accept Resolution 19-11-06.  Mr. Watt made a motion to
approve and Mr. Bautz seconded the motion.

Upon a call of the roll, the vote resulted as follows:

Mr. Bautz YES 

Ms. Chandler ABSENT 

Mr. Fehr YES 

Mr. Foster YES 

Mr. Gordon YES 

Mr. Lawson YES 



November 20th, 2019 BCRTA Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
Page 13 

Ms. Scott Jones ABSENT 

Mr. Watt YES 

The resolution was adopted. 

g. Resolution No. 19-11-07:  Honoring Mr. Robert Ruzinsky in Recognition of His Outstanding
Service and Achievement Upon His Retirement from BCRTA.

Mr. Becker requested a motion to accept Resolution 19-11-07.  Mr. Foster made a motion to 
approve and Mr. Gordon seconded the motion. 

Upon a call of the roll, the vote resulted as follows: 

Mr. Bautz YES 

Ms. Chandler ABSENT 

Mr. Fehr YES 

Mr. Foster YES 

Mr. Gordon YES 

Mr. Lawson YES 

Ms. Scott Jones ABSENT 

Mr. Watt YES 

The resolution was adopted. 

XII. Adjourn

Mr. Watt moved to adjourn, and Mr. Bautz seconded.  The motion carried.  The meeting was 
adjourned at 9:44 AM. 

Respectfully submitted, 

_________________________________________________ 
Matthew M. Dutkevicz, Executive Director 

_________________________________________________ 
Approved - Chris Lawson, President 



BCRTA 

Income Statement 
October 19 

Current Month Current Month 
Change 

Last Year 

Budget Actual Current Month 

Revenues 

Passenger Fares 11,686.00 13,570.34 1,884.34 11,095.16 
Contract Service 18,423.00 20,939.28 2,516.28 17,881.75 
Other Transit Rev. 97,666.67 117,372.29 19,705.62 102,831.52 
Mgt./Cons. Services 10,220.00 10,220.00 10,000.00 
Maintenance Services 
Rentals 
Interest & Other 3,175.00 62,027.77 58,852.77 5,960.98 
Local Funding 274,934.34 277,456.12 2,521.78 228,790.52 
State Funding 
Federal Funding 157,874.08 146,168.00 (11,706.08) 127,688.00 
In-Kind Items 

Total Revenues 573,979.09 647,753.80 73,774.71 504,247.93 

Expenses 

Wages 263,408.67 285,567.42 22,158.75 246,724.61 
Fringes 70,639.55 79,073.60 8,434.05 64,012.76 
Services 39,433.34 26,730.85 (12,702.49) 20,628.66 
Materials & Supplies 57,312.43 65,190.73 7,878.30 61,986.26 
Utilities 6,325.00 6,436.04 111.04 7,441.73 
Insurance 18,552.83 15,466.61 (3,086.22) 16,978.16 
Taxes 
Purchased Transportation 41,666.67 42,052.38 385.71 41,044.50 
Misc. Items 4,873.50 3,575.52 {1,297.98) 3,117.86 
Leases & Rentals 

Total Expenses 502,211.99 524,093.15 21,881.16 461,934.54 

Gain I (Loss) 71,767.10 123,660.65 51,893.55 42,313.39 

Local Share Depreciation 20,380.79 

Gain/ (Loss) with Local Depr. 103,279.86 



























Director’s Notes – January 2020 

A. Metrics & Service 
1. BGO APP 

Staff are launching the new scheduling and payment app for the door-to-door 
BGO service this month. Testing has already begun, and existing riders received 
a letter the week of October 14. Shawn Cowan will be conducting some 
additional marketing to share the news. 

 

2. BGO Fare Change 

Effective, January 2, 2020, BCRTA changed all in-county BGO rates to $5.00 per 
trip.  This was in response to BCRTA successful Job Shuttle program that was 
defunded in 2015 and to align more closely with the OKI Coordinated Human 
Service Transportation Plan and BCRTA updated vision created at the June 2019 
board retreat.  Both documents address reducing fares or eliminating barriers to 
transportation. 

 

3. BCDD 

BCDD contacted BCRTA and requested a proposal to provide “choice 
transportation” in late 2019. This is similar to the arrangement BCRTA had with 
BCDD several years ago where families could choose from a pool of eligible 
transportation providers at predetermined rates. BCDD moved to a single 
provider system at the suggestion of their auditor during the last solicitation but 
intends to return to the “choice” model in FY 2020. BCRTA and BCDD executed a 
contract in late December and service began Jan 2, 2020. 

 

4. BGO Denials 

In order to better monitor BGO denials and staffing, this data will now be 
included in the monthly metric report card. 

 

5. Half Fare for Veterans 

In accordance with the directives of the BCRTA Board of Trustees following the 
May regular meeting, BCRTA staff has negotiated a 50% discount with BCVSC for 
fixed route bus fares not to exceed $24,999, beginning in 2020. 

 

6. Fixed Route Fares 

Given a combination of factors including the national conversation, FTA’s 
mandate the U & P routes be free, and total fare revenue, staff has been 
discussing the feasibility of eliminating fixed route fares.  This concept may also 
directly support several of the visioning benchmarks established at the June 
2019 retreat.  The idea is preliminary, and staff are still investigating with no 
solid conclusions at this time.  For more reading: 

 



Director’s Notes – January 2020 

https://www.opb.org/news/article/northwest-transit-system-fareless-bus-
olympia-intercity/ 

https://www.houstonpublicmedia.org/articles/news/in-
depth/2020/01/06/355569/metro-is-gathering-input-on-whether-to-stop-
collecting-fares/ 

https://www.citylab.com/transportation/2019/12/free-transit-how-much-cost-
kansas-city-bus-streetcar-fare/603397/ 

https://www.cincinnati.com/story/news/2019/12/03/cincinnati-streetcar-city-
moves-toward-eliminating-fares/2602233001/ 

 
 
 

B. Staffing & Facility 
1. Staffing 

BCRTA is currently seeking CDL and non-CDL drivers, maintenance technicians.  
A biweekly email digest of open positions is available.  Please contact Kristin 
Fryer, BCRTA HR Manager (fryerk@butlercountyrta.com) if you would like to be 
added to the mailing list. 

 

2. 19-09-01 VOIP Phones 

Since September, staff has been working closely with legal counsel to negotiate 
an agreement pursuant to BCRTA Board Resolution 19-09-01.  Although Ring 
Central was selected as the lowest cost and best product, we have been unable 
to negotiate an agreement satisfactory to both parties.  Staff may try to 
negotiate with the next bidder of cancel this solicitation and rebid the project. 

 

C. Planning 
1. Chestnut Street Multimodal Station 

BCRTA was awarded $2.6M in 5339 funds in April 2018 and $4.M5 in CMAQ 
funds in 2019 to be put toward the facility.  CMAQ funds are programmed for FY 
2024. 

 

Information regarding conceptual plans and estimates on the Chestnut Street 
Multimodal Station is available at 
http://www.butlercountyrta.com/oxfordfacility.   

 

BCRTA staff have been working closely with BCRTA legal counsel and Miami 
University to begin negotiating a land use/lease agreement and joint 
development agreement for the construction of the proposed facility. 

 

BCRTA has drafted proposed documents and will begin meeting to negotiate in 
early February. 

 

https://www.opb.org/news/article/northwest-transit-system-fareless-bus-olympia-intercity/
https://www.opb.org/news/article/northwest-transit-system-fareless-bus-olympia-intercity/
https://www.opb.org/news/article/northwest-transit-system-fareless-bus-olympia-intercity/
https://www.houstonpublicmedia.org/articles/news/in-depth/2020/01/06/355569/metro-is-gathering-input-on-whether-to-stop-collecting-fares/
https://www.houstonpublicmedia.org/articles/news/in-depth/2020/01/06/355569/metro-is-gathering-input-on-whether-to-stop-collecting-fares/
https://www.houstonpublicmedia.org/articles/news/in-depth/2020/01/06/355569/metro-is-gathering-input-on-whether-to-stop-collecting-fares/
https://www.citylab.com/transportation/2019/12/free-transit-how-much-cost-kansas-city-bus-streetcar-fare/603397/
https://www.citylab.com/transportation/2019/12/free-transit-how-much-cost-kansas-city-bus-streetcar-fare/603397/
https://www.citylab.com/transportation/2019/12/free-transit-how-much-cost-kansas-city-bus-streetcar-fare/603397/
https://www.citylab.com/transportation/2019/12/free-transit-how-much-cost-kansas-city-bus-streetcar-fare/603397/
https://www.cincinnati.com/story/news/2019/12/03/cincinnati-streetcar-city-moves-toward-eliminating-fares/2602233001/
https://www.cincinnati.com/story/news/2019/12/03/cincinnati-streetcar-city-moves-toward-eliminating-fares/2602233001/
https://www.cincinnati.com/story/news/2019/12/03/cincinnati-streetcar-city-moves-toward-eliminating-fares/2602233001/
https://www.cincinnati.com/story/news/2019/12/03/cincinnati-streetcar-city-moves-toward-eliminating-fares/2602233001/
mailto:fryerk@butlercountyrta.com
mailto:fryerk@butlercountyrta.com
http://www.butlercountyrta.com/oxfordfacility
http://www.butlercountyrta.com/oxfordfacility


Director’s Notes – January 2020 

2. Regional Cooperation & NEORide 

www.EZfare.us and Transit app with EZFare launched October 23. Between 
October 23, 2019.  Part of BCRTA’s discretionary award of state funding includes 
dollars to place electronic validators for the mobile ticketing system onboard 
vehicles. 

 

3. 42X 

BCRTA renewed the 42X contract for 2020 with Cincinnati Metro.  Staff 
recommend aggressive pursuit of a cost-sharing model in 2021 after SORTA has 
completed its ballot initiative. 

 
 

D. Outreach & Communications 
1. I-75 WorkLink Corridor 

Due to inefficient ridership and the projected loss of funding from Premier 
Health in Q1 2020, BCRTA has recommended a demand-response model to 
serve WorkLink constituents in the Middletown-Monroe-Dayton corridor.  The 
partners are currently evaluating the plan.  Some decisions remain uncertain as 
Doug Adkins and Jen Ekey, two major contributors to the plan, are recently no 
longer with the City of Middletown. 

 

2. List of Influencers 
As part of addressing BCRTA’s newly proposed vision, I would like to gather a list 
of relationships and influencers that our organization and Board of Trustees 
believe they can leverage if needed. I am asking staff and trustees to share 
persons and position/title information so we may create a database that may be 
used to influence decisions and opinions regarding BCRTA and public transit in 
our area. Please email Vonda Partin with your information: 
partinv@butlercountyrta.com. 

 
 

E. Funding & Discretionary Grant Availability 
1. Transit Alliance of Butler County (TABC)  Grant Opportunity 

At the regular January meeting, the TABC discussed applying to the 5310 
program that provides funding to non-profits seeking to assist elderly and 
disabled populations with transportation.  Vehicles are the most common award 
of the program, although transit agencies can apply for non-traditional awards.  
TABC passed a motion to pursue a grant and provide up to $4,300 of local match 
pending staff recommendation and the willingness of the BCRTA Board to 
provide the additional needed local match.  Any awarded vehicles would be 
provided to the BCRTA to use, like the last round where TABC was awarded two 
vehicles in 2008.  The TABC would collect disposal proceeds at the end of the 
vehicles useful life. 

 

http://www.ezfare.us/
mailto:partinv@butlercountyrta.com
mailto:partinv@butlercountyrta.com


Director’s Notes – January 2020 

2. CMAQ/STP 

BCRTA applied locally to OKI for the unfunded portion of the Chestnut Fields 
Multimodal Station & Shared Services Facility. OKI reports they received twenty-
one applications totaling more than $75M. On September 10, the OKI 
Prioritization Subcommittee scored BCRTA’s application with 74 points, more 
than any other local project! BCRTA received an official award letter from OKI 
on December 19, 2019. 

 

3. $70M for Transit (HB 62) – Ohio Transit Partnership Program Grants 

State funding awards were made October 25, 2019. BCRTA received $305,653 in 
Urban Transit Program funds, $3,611 in Elderly and Disabled Subsidies, and 
$474,383 in discretionary Transit Partnership Program (OTP2) funds for 
operating assistance and bus replacement match. 

 

4. State Rural Transit Funding, Section 5311 

BCRTA applied to ODOT’s rural transit program this summer to fund a portion of 
the Chestnut Fields Multimodal Station & Shared Service Facility. ODOT asked 
that BCRTA apply instead to state 5339 funds for rural and small urban agencies 
bus and bus facilities. BCRTA did not receive a rural program award. Staff plan to 
reallocate other funds in light of the other ODOT awards made to BCRTA to help 
address Chestnut facility needs. 

 

5. 5339 Bus and Bus Facilities 

Staff completed an application requesting the unfunded portion of the Chestnut 
Fields Multimodal Station & Shared Services Facility. Application were due June 
21, 2019. Awards were announced in December 2019.  BCRTA was not 
successful in this round of funding.  John and Matt received a debrief from 
USDOT in Washington regarding weaknesses of the application. 

 
 

F. On the Horizon … 
 

1. Employee Appreciation Breakfast and Annual Meeting 

Please remember the BCRTA Annual Meeting and Employee Appreciation 
Luncheon schedule for Sunday January, 19 2020 at 1:00 PM.  The event will held 
at the Fitton Center for Creative & Performing Arts. 

 



Director’s Notes – January 2020 

2. City of Middletown 

Middletown City Council has removed Doug Adkins as City Manager. BCRTA’s 
main point of contact, Susan Cohen has been appointed Acting City Manager. 
No major changes are expected to BCRTA’s relationship with the City at this 
time. However, several mutual arrangements with pending decisions may be 
delayed until after new leadership is appointed. This could include the City’s 
pending transportation/transit study, WorkLink, and the transfer of potentially 
lapsing MTS 5307 funds to be used towards the Chestnut Fields project. 

 

3. New Website 

Keep your eye out for a new BCRTA website! Due to some delays caused by 
wildfires in the developer’s local area, launch has been delayed until mid-
February. 

 

4. Ohio Loves Transit Day 

The Ohio Public Transit Association will again sponsor Ohio Loves Transit 
Day/Week on February 14, 2020.  Agencies across the state will participate 
through different marketing events and free fixed route fares.  OPTA will also 
hold a legislative reception on February 12, 2020 at the Ohio Statehouse from 
5:30 – 7:30.  RSVP is required.  Please contact Matt or Vonda if you would like to 
attend.  

 

5. Accessible Meetings 

BCRTA will seek to hold accessible meetings again in 2020.  To better connect 
with consumers, staff is seeking volunteers to host meetings at facilities that are 
ADA accessible and located on transit lines.  If you have a recommendation or 
would like to host, please contact Matt or Vonda. 

 

6. Federal Transit Administration Triennial Review 

2020 Is BCRTA’s year for another triennial review of compliance with the terms 
of FTA’s master agreement for all grantees.  Staff has been collecting data and 
answering questions for weeks.  Materials and documents for the desk review 
are due January 10.  FTA will be onsite April 28 and 29, 2020.  The Board will be 
apprised of FTA’s actions.  Trustees should also expect to take up some clean-up 
legislation before and after the review to bring any items into compliance that 
may need updating at the Board level.

https://files.constantcontact.com/eb8cdf1e301/88825701-a59b-4228-959d-47607da557af.pdf
https://files.constantcontact.com/eb8cdf1e301/88825701-a59b-4228-959d-47607da557af.pdf
https://files.constantcontact.com/eb8cdf1e301/88825701-a59b-4228-959d-47607da557af.pdf
https://files.constantcontact.com/eb8cdf1e301/88825701-a59b-4228-959d-47607da557af.pdf


Director’s Notes – January 2020 

As Ohio’s public transit innovator, BCRTA provides 

smart mobility options and infrastructure that 

seamlessly connect people to employers, 

educational, healthcare, and recreational 

destinations. 

• Leverage competitive federal funding and forge mutually 
beneficial partnerships with organizations, including 
incubators, chambers, universities, start-ups, economic 
development bodies, and planning professionals.

• Enhance connectivity with constituents by leading in the 
implementation of new transit tech (onboard Wi-Fi tools).

• Improve mobility access and eliminate barriers to 
ridership, especially for riders who may be elderly or have 
disabilities.

• Support employers with effective workforce 
transportation in at least 75% of Butler County’s densest 
corridors.

• Develop multimodal infrastructure and wayfinding to 
create seamless user experiences.



  

1 

 

  

  

    

  

  

Butler County Regional Transit Authority  

3045 Moser Ct. Hamilton OH 45011 

Recipient ID: 5774 
Equal Employment Opportunity Program 

October 1, 2017 – October 1, 2021  
  

  

  

 

Any questions, concerns, or complaints should be addressed to: 

Kristen Fryer 

Civil Rights Officer 

3045 Moser Ct. 

Hamilton, OH 45011 

fryerk@butlercountyrta.com 

(513) 785-5022 

  

mailto:fryerk@butlercountyrta.com


  

2 

 

Contents 
Overview of Program............................................................................................ 3 

Statement of Policy .............................................................................................. 3 

Dissemination of Policy ....................................................................................... 3 

Internal Dissemination ..................................................................................... 3 

External Dissemination .................................................................................... 4 

Program and EEO Officer Designation ................................................................. 4 

Utilization Analysis ............................................................................................. 5 

Employee Statistics .......................................................................................... 6 

Underutilization ............................................................................................... 6 

Goals, Timetables and Areas for Attention ........................................................... 6 

Assessment of Employment Practices .................................................................. 7 

Recruitment Process ........................................................................................ 7 

Promotions & Advancement ............................................................................. 7 

Compensation and Benefits .............................................................................. 7 

Monitoring & Reporting ....................................................................................... 7 

Attachment A:  6-17 Equal Employment Opportunity Policy ................................ 9 

Attachment B:  Utilization Analysis Data ........................................................... 11 

Attachment C:  Applicant Questionnaires and Collected Data ............................ 12 

 

  



  

3 

Overview of Program  

BCRTA is supported by a combination of funding from the State and Federal 

government, as well as local partnerships with Butler County agencies.  The 

agency receives no sales tax revenues.  BCRTA is committed to its fiscal 

responsibility of sustainability through efficiency.    BCRTA will examine all 

staffing and route efficiencies in order to maintain its current level of services. 

 

BCRTA has been identified by FTA as an entity required to “prepare and 

maintain” an abbreviated EEO Program under the updated FTA C 4704.1A, 

Section 1.4. BCRTA is not required to submit EEO Program, however, FTA may 

review this program during regular oversight opportunities, including Triennial 

Reviews or State Management Reviews, during EEO Specialized Reviews, or as 

requested by FTA’s Office of Civil Rights. 

 

Statement of Policy 

BCRTA states as its policy a commitment to provide equal opportunity to all 

persons in matters affecting all employment processes, but not limited to, 

recruitment, employment, compensation, benefits, promotions, training, 

discipline, transfer selection, terminations, and other terms and conditions of 

employment and layoff practices without regard to a person’s race, color, 

religion, national origin, disability, gender, genetic information, veteran status, 

or age. 

The full text of the BCRTA Equal Opportunity Employment Opportunity Policy is 

included as Attachment A. 

Dissemination of Policy 

Internal Dissemination  
The agency acknowledges its commitment to equal employment with all 

applicants and potential hires.  BCRTA’s EEO statement is prominently placed 

on its application. 

    

In addition, EEO training is provided to each new employee during new hire 

orientation.  The EEO Policy is also placed in the Employee Handbook that is 

given to all employees.  Each employee must acknowledge receipt of the policy 

by signing an acknowledgement of the employee handbook. A copy of the policy 

is attached as Attachment A. 

  

The BCRTA EEO Officer will attend training by the Equal Employment 

Opportunity Commission.  BCRTA will implement a yearly refresher session for 

relevant employees conducted by the officer.   

  

Employees are also made aware of BCRTA’s EEO policy through posters that 

are prominently displayed throughout the main office and all transfer centers.  

  



  

4 

External Dissemination  
Externally, BCRTA’s EEO disclosure is placed on all employment 

advertisements.   

BCRTA’s EEO statement is prominently displayed on the agency’s website 

under the employment link and is part of the employment application. 

Applicants may opt to voluntarily complete an EEO survey when an applicant 

is recommended for hire.  The EEO Survey is included in addition to the most 

recent data obtained from the survey as Attachment C.  

 

 

Program and EEO Officer Designation 

EEO responsibilities have been designated to Kristin Fryer, Civil Rights Officer 

by the BCRTA Executive Director. Mrs. Fryer holds a collateral duty position in 

which she manages administrative duties as well as EEO responsibilities. Her 

EEO responsibilities include oversight of the EEO program, being involved with 

local minority organizations, participating in the review of complaints alleging 

discrimination, and supporting career counseling for employees. Ms. Fryer 

reports directly to the Executive Director to report progress and potential 

conflict of interest for the EEO program.  Contact information is as follows: 

  
Kristin Fryer 

Civil Rights Officer  

3045 Moser Ct. Hamilton, OH 45011  

(513) 785-5022   

fryerk@butlercountyrta.com 

 

  



  

5 

Utilization Analysis 

BCRTA is located in Hamilton, OH and serves the Butler County area.  The five 

major cities that make up Butler County are Hamilton, Middletown, Fairfield, 

West Chester and Oxford.  Based on the United States Census Bureau’s 2016 

estimate, the total population for the Butler County area is 377,537.  Of these 

residents, 51.0% are female and 49.0% are male.  The ethnic makeup of the 

population of Butler County is detailed in Table 1 below.  

 

Table 1 - Butler County Residents by Race & Hispanic Origin 

Race and Hispanic Origin  

White alone, percent, July 1, 2016, (V2016)(a) 85.7% 

White alone, percent, April 1, 2010(a) 86.0% 

Black or African American alone, percent, July 1, 2016, (V2016)(a) 8.5% 

Black or African American alone, percent, April 1, 2010(a) 7.3% 

American Indian and Alaska Native alone, percent, July 1, 2016, (V2016)(a) 0.3% 

American Indian and Alaska Native alone, percent, April 1, 2010(a) 0.2% 

Asian alone, percent, July 1, 2016, (V2016)(a) 3.1% 

Asian alone, percent, April 1, 2010(a) 2.4% 

Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander alone, percent, July 1, 2016, (V2016)(a) 0.1% 

Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander alone, percent, April 1, 2010(a) 0.1% 

Two or More Races, percent, July 1, 2016, (V2016) 2.3% 

Two or More Races, percent, April 1, 2010 2.1% 

Hispanic or Latino, percent, July 1, 2016, (V2016)(b) 4.6% 

Hispanic or Latino, percent, April 1, 2010(b) 4.0% 

White alone, not Hispanic or Latino, percent, July 1, 2016, (V2016) 81.9% 

White alone, not Hispanic or Latino, percent, April 1, 2010 84.3% 

  

Value Notes 

This geographic level of poverty and health estimates are not comparable to other geographic levels of these estimates.  Some estimates 
presented here come from sample data, and thus have sampling errors that may render some apparent differences between geographies 
statistically indistinguishable. Click the Quick Info  icon to the left of each row in TABLE view to learn about sampling error.  The vintage year 
(e.g., V2016) refers to the final year of the series (2010 thru 2016). Different vintage years of estimates are not comparable. 
Fact Notes 

• (a)Includes persons reporting only one race 

• (b)Hispanics may be of any race, so also are included in applicable race categories 

QuickFacts data are derived from: Population Estimates, American Community Survey, Census of Population and Housing, Current Population 
Survey, Small Area SHealth Insurance Estimates, Small Area Income and Poverty Estimates, State and County Housing Unit Estimates, County 
Business Patterns, Non employer Statistics, Economic Census, Survey of Business Owners, Building Permits. 

  

https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/fact/table/butlercountyohio/PST045216#qf-headnote-a
https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/fact/table/butlercountyohio/PST045216#qf-headnote-a
https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/fact/table/butlercountyohio/PST045216#qf-headnote-a
https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/fact/table/butlercountyohio/PST045216#qf-headnote-a
https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/fact/table/butlercountyohio/PST045216#qf-headnote-a
https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/fact/table/butlercountyohio/PST045216#qf-headnote-a
https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/fact/table/butlercountyohio/PST045216#qf-headnote-a
https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/fact/table/butlercountyohio/PST045216#qf-headnote-a
https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/fact/table/butlercountyohio/PST045216#qf-headnote-a
https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/fact/table/butlercountyohio/PST045216#qf-headnote-a
https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/fact/table/butlercountyohio/PST045216#qf-headnote-b
https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/fact/table/butlercountyohio/PST045216#qf-headnote-b


  

6 

Employee Statistics  
BCRTA strives to have the ethnic makeup of the employee population mirror 

the Butler County population in proportion.  Statistics that are tracked include, 

job category, salary, race, and gender.  A detailed summary of this data is 

provided in Attachment B. 

 

Data regarding applicant’s veteran and disability status is collected 

anonymously through the BCRTA applicant tracking system.  This data is 

monitored as part of the EEO program process and is available in Attachment 

C. 

Underutilization  
The majority of BCRTA employees fall into the service-maintenance category 

which is comprised of Coach Operators, Call Center Representatives, and 

Dispatchers.  Administrative staff fall into the Administrative Support category 

with a small number of Skilled Craft personnel working in vehicle and facilities 

maintenance. There is also a small amount of staff that fall into the Officials 

and Administrators category as well as the Professionals category.  BCRTA does 

not employ positions in the categories of Technicians, Protective Service 

Workers, or Paraprofessionals. 

  

The information used to determine BCRTA’s utilization is obtained from 

internal records and EEO4 reporting.  For the most recent analysis, BCRTA 

identified three categories with underutilization in particular areas as seen in 

Table 2 below. 

Table 2 – Underutilization by Category 
Category % BCRTA % Availability % Underutilization 

Officials & Administrators 

     Female, White 0.0% 34.7% 35% 

Professionals 

     Female, White 40% 52.3% 12% 

Service-Maintenance 

     Male, Black or African American 1.4% 6.0% 5% 

     Male, Hispanic or Latino 0.0% 3.1% 3% 

     Female, Hispanic or Latino 0.0% 1.5% 2% 

     Female, Asian 0.0% 1.4% 1% 

 

 

Goals, Timetables and Areas for Attention 

Although BCRTA has elected to conduct a utilization analysis for informational 

purposes, this agency is exempt from creating goals and timelines as described 

in FTA C 4704.1A. 

 



  

7 

Assessment of Employment Practices 

Recruitment Process  
The recruitment process at BCRTA consists of most commonly used practices.  

Position vacancies are posted publicly via BCRTA’s applicant tracking system 

(JazzHR) which propagates on the BCRTA website and other syndicated job 

sites.  The agency encourages and incentivizes current employees to 

recommend candidates for hire, and participates in local job fairs.   

Employees are selected based on qualifications that include education and 

experience.  Each applicant participates in a structured interview process 

which consists of a team of individuals who represent the HR Department, the 

Department Manager or Director of the department in which the vacancy exists 

and one other member from the applicable department.  To ensure BCRTA 

complies with its EEO policy, the Civil Rights Officer may attend interviews.  

Promotion procedures are structured to allow all qualified internal applicants 

an opportunity to interview for a selected vacancy.  

BCRTA is seeking to increase its outreach within the community by looking to 

partner with local agencies such as the local Chamber of Commerce, Butler 

County Job and Family Services agency and continuing to partner with the 

Employment Source as the need arises. 

 

Promotions & Advancement 
BCRTA seeks to promote internal candidates whenever possible.  Internal 

opportunities are solicited in the same manner as external opportunities, and 

internal applicants are carefully weighed against outside applicants based 

upon merit, experience and qualifications.  Internal applicants are subject to 

the same evaluation, interview and decision process as external applicants. 

 

Compensation and Benefits 
BCRTA wage categories are reviewed by the BCRTA Board of Trustees as 

needed.  All wage setting and increases are based upon carefully documented 

achievement and inflation when needed.  Increases and wage setting are 

centralized through a personnel action approval process to prohibit unfair 

practices and unjust compensation.  BCRTA does not currently offer a bonus 

structure or group health insurance due to budgetary constraints.  BCRTA 

does offer a formal public policy to provide tuition and coursework 

reimbursement in the interest of internal advancement and promotion of its 

employees. 

 

Monitoring & Reporting 

Electronic records required by regulation and this plan shall be tracked in the 

BCRTA human resource management software and applicant tracking systems 

in accordance with BCRTA records retention policy.  This program shall be 

reviewed annually by the BCRTA Board of Trustees.  Additionally, the EEO 



  

8 

Officer shall provide a report to the Executive Director outlining the progress 

and attainment of goals in advance of this annual review.  

 

 

  



  

9 

Attachment A:  6-17 Equal Employment Opportunity Policy 

Adopted: 11-19-14 

Revised: 8-16-2017 

Compliance with Employment Laws 

 

It is BCRTA’s policy to abide by all federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations 

applicable to BCRTA, and for all our employees to do the same. 

 

Any violation or perceived violation of law should be reported to a management 

representative, who will make every effort to investigate and address the problem promptly. 

 

 Equal Employment Opportunity 
 

BCRTA states as its policy a commitment to provide equal opportunity to all persons in 

matters affecting all employment processes, but not limited to, recruitment, employment, 

compensation, benefits, promotions, training, discipline, transfer selection, terminations, and 

other terms and conditions of employment and layoff practices without regard to a person’s 

race, color, religion, national origin, disability, gender, genetic information, sexual orientation, 

gender identity, veteran status, or age.  

 

Further, BCRTA is committed to complying with Title I of the Americans with Disabilities Act 

and prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability.  BCRTA will make accommodations that 

are reasonable and not unduly burdensome to enable qualified disabled applicants and 

employees to participate in the employment process and perform essential job functions.   

 

Consistent with applicable federal and state laws, BCRTA has established a written program, 

including goals and timetables, to overcome the effects of discrimination on minorities and 

women.  To ensure effective ongoing review of the program, BCRTA has assigned responsibility 

for oversight of the Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) program to a member of management 

designated as EEO Officer. BCRTA’s EEO Officer is responsible for directing all human 

resource practices and functions in accordance with the principles of equal employment 

opportunity, and for maintaining the written EEO plan and employment processes data. 

 

BCRTA believes fulfilling this policy is a top priority in its daily operations.  BCRTA holds 

every manager and supervisor accountable for implementing this policy.  Performance in 

contributing to the success of the equal employment opportunity program will be evaluated in 

the same manner as performance of other department goals.  All employees are expected to 

cooperate in carrying out principles and practices of equal employment opportunity. 

 

Job applicants and employees who believe they have been a victim of discrimination have the 

right to file a complaint with BCRTA’s designated EEO Officer, or with another member of 

management with whom the individual is comfortable speaking. BCRTA will promptly 

investigate complaints, and will take appropriate remedial and disciplinary action whenever it 

determines that this policy has been violated. BCRTA believes that successful achievement 

of EEO goals will provide benefits to BCRTA through fuller utilization and development of 

previously underutilized human resources.   

 

Copies of this Statement of Policy are conspicuously posted throughout the BCRTA facility. In 

addition, the policy statement can be found on BCRTA’s website at 

www.butlercountyrta.com.  A copy of the complete EEO Program is available for review by any 

individual upon request. 



  

10 

  



  

11 

Attachment B:  Utilization Analysis Data 

  



  

12 

Attachment C:  Applicant Questionnaires and Collected Data 

 

The following questions are entirely optional. 

To comply with government Equal Employment Opportunity / Affirmative Action reporting regulations, we are 

requesting (but NOT requiring) that you enter this personal data. This information will not be used in connection with 

any employment decisions, and will be used solely as permitted by state and federal law. Your voluntary cooperation 

would be appreciated. Learn more. 

Gender 

Decline to answer
 

Race/Ethnicity 

Decline to answer
 

 
Invitation for Job Applicants to Self-Identify as a U.S. Veteran 

• A “disabled veteran” is one of the following: 

o a veteran of the U.S. military, ground, naval or air service who is entitled to compensation (or who but for the receipt 

of military retired pay would be entitled to compensation) under laws administered by the Secretary of Veterans 

Affairs; or 

o a person who was discharged or released from active duty because of a service-connected disability. 

• A “recently separated veteran” means any veteran during the three-year period beginning on the date of such 

veteran's discharge or release from active duty in the U.S. military, ground, naval, or air service. 

• An “active duty wartime or campaign badge veteran” means a veteran who served on active duty in the U.S. military, 

ground, naval or air service during a war, or in a campaign or expedition for which a campaign badge has been 

authorized under the laws administered by the Department of Defense. 

• An “Armed forces service medal veteran” means a veteran who, while serving on active duty in the U.S. military, 

ground, naval or air service, participated in a United States military operation for which an Armed Forces service 

medal was awarded pursuant to Executive Order 12985. 

Veteran status 

 I IDENTIFY AS ONE OR MORE OF THE CLASSIFICATIONS OF PROTECTED VETERAN LISTED ABOVE 

 I AM NOT A PROTECTED VETERAN 

 I DON’T WISH TO ANSWER 

 
Voluntary Self-Identification of Disability 

Voluntary Self-Identification of Disability Form CC-305 

OMB Control Number 1250-0005 

Expires 1/31/2020 

Why are you being asked to complete this form? 

Because we do business with the government, we must reach out to, hire, and provide equal opportunity to qualified 

people with disabilities.i To help us measure how well we are doing, we are asking you to tell us if you have a disability or 

if you ever had a disability. Completing this form is voluntary, but we hope that you will choose to fill it out. If you are 

applying for a job, any answer you give will be kept private and will not be used against you in any way. 

If you already work for us, your answer will not be used against you in any way. Because a person may become disabled 

at any time, we are required to ask all of our employees to update their information every five years. You may voluntarily 

http://bcrta.applytojob.com/disclaimer.html


  

13 

self-identify as having a disability on this form without fear of any punishment because you did not identify as having a 

disability earlier. 

How do I know if I have a disability? 

You are considered to have a disability if you have a physical or mental impairment or medical condition that substantially 

limits a major life activity, or if you have a history or record of such an impairment or medical condition. 

Disabilities include, but are not limited to: 

• Blindness 

• Deafness 

• Cancer 

• Diabetes 

• Epilepsy 

• Autism 

• Cerebral palsy 

• HIV/AIDS 

• Schizophrenia 

• Muscular dystrophy 

• Bipolar disorder 

• Major depression 

• Multiple sclerosis (MS) 

• Missing limbs or partially missing limbs 

• Post-traumatic stress disorder (PTSD) 

• Obsessive compulsive disorder 

• Impairments requiring the use of a wheelchair 

• Intellectual disability (previously called mental retardation) 

Please check one of the boxes below: 

 

 YES, I HAVE A DISABILITY (or previously had a disability) 

 NO, I DON’T HAVE A DISABILITY 

 I DON’T WISH TO ANSWER 

  



  

14 

Figure 1 - Hires by Race and Sex (all positions) 

 
 



  

15 

Figure 2 - Hires by Veteran/Disability (Section 503 Final Rule)

 



BCRTA Metric Scorecard
Passengers per Revenue Hour

Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19
Demand Response 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.5 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.8 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0
Fixed Route* 24.6 21.2 20.1 6.6 19.1 16.1 17.7 18.8 3.0 2.6 7.8 15.8 15.4 15.7
Commuter Route 3.6 3.0 2.5 0.6 2.1 1.3 1.5 1.2 1.6 0.7 1.1 3.7 3.1 2.7

*does not include shuttle trips

Cost per Passenger (Blended)
Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19

5.27$        8.15$        12.95$      19.18$      5.20$        7.04$        5.83$        10.64$      40.52$      49.48$      16.35$      5.98$        6.17$        7.57$        

Admin/Overhead Cost per Revenue Hour
Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19
11.56$      20.96$      32.16$      20.98$      15.39$      15.30$      15.63$      22.93$      24.54$      29.04$      22.57$      14.10$      12.11$      12.13$      

Butler County RTA Accidents/Injuries

Fault Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19
Major (S&S 40) -            -            -            -            -            1               -            -            -            -            -            -            1               -            
Non Major (S&S 50) -            -            -            -            -            -            -            1               -            -            -            -            -            -            
Non Reportable 2               3               2               5               4               1               3               1               3               2               1               4               5               4               
Total 2               3               2               5               4               2               3               2               3               2               1               4               6               4               

No Fault
Major (S&S 40) -            -            1               -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            
Non Major (S&S 50) 1               1               -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            1               1               -            -            
Non Reportable -            1               4               3               1               6               2               6               3               1               4               2               2               2               
Total 1               2               5               3               1               6               2               6               3               1               5               3               2               2               

1.7  1.7  1.7  1.5  1.8  1.6  1.5  1.5  1.5  1.8  1.7  1.8  1.9  2.0 

24.6 

21.2 
20.1 

6.6 

19.1 

16.1 
17.7 

18.8 

3.0  2.6 

7.8 

15.8  15.4  15.7 

3.6  3.0  2.5 
0.6 

2.1  1.3  1.5  1.2  1.6 
0.7  1.1 

3.7  3.1  2.7 

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

25.0

30.0

Oct‐18 Nov‐18 Dec‐18 Jan‐19 Feb‐19 Mar‐19 Apr‐19 May‐19 Jun‐19 Jul‐19 Aug‐19 Sep‐19 Oct‐19 Nov‐19

 Demand Response  Fixed Route*  Commuter Route

 $‐

 $10.00

 $20.00

 $30.00

 $40.00

 $50.00

 $60.00

Oct‐18 Nov‐18 Dec‐18 Jan‐19 Feb‐19 Mar‐19 Apr‐19 May‐19 Jun‐19 Jul‐19 Aug‐19 Sep‐19 Oct‐19 Nov‐19

 $‐

 $5.00

 $10.00

 $15.00

 $20.00

 $25.00

 $30.00

 $35.00

Oct‐18 Nov‐18 Dec‐18 Jan‐19 Feb‐19 Mar‐19 Apr‐19 May‐19 Jun‐19 Jul‐19 Aug‐19 Sep‐19 Oct‐19 Nov‐19

2 

3 

2 

5 

4 

2 

3 

2 

3 

2 

1 

4 

6 

4 

1 

2 

5 

3 

1 

6 

2 

6 

3 

1 

5 

3 

2  2 

Oct‐18 Nov‐18 Dec‐18 Jan‐19 Feb‐19 Mar‐19 Apr‐19 May‐19 Jun‐19 Jul‐19 Aug‐19 Sep‐19 Oct‐19 Nov‐19

 Fault   Total  No Fault   Total



Average Fleet Age (in years)
Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19

4.55          4.39          4.32          4.22          4.22          4.20          4.25          3.89          3.96          4.02          4.08          4.07          4.14          4.20          

Road Calls
Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19

Demand Response/ADA 1.0 2.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.0 0.0 1.0 0.0
Fixed Route 0.0 0.0 1.0 3.0 1.0 2.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0
Commuter Route 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0

Park & Ride
Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19

42X Ridership 9,326 7,639 6,365 8,799 8,135 8,163 9,217 9,048 8,430 9,767 10,213 8,513 9,818 7,522

 3.50

 3.70

 3.90

 4.10

 4.30

 4.50

 4.70

 4.90

 5.10

 5.30

 5.50

Oct‐18 Nov‐18 Dec‐18 Jan‐19 Feb‐19 Mar‐19 Apr‐19 May‐19 Jun‐19 Jul‐19 Aug‐19 Sep‐19 Oct‐19 Nov‐19

A
ve
rg
e 
A
ge
 (
in
 y
ea
rs
)

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

3.5

4.0

4.5

Oct‐18 Nov‐18 Dec‐18 Jan‐19 Feb‐19 Mar‐19 Apr‐19 May‐19 Jun‐19 Jul‐19 Aug‐19 Sep‐19 Oct‐19 Nov‐19

 Demand Response/ADA  Fixed Route  Commuter Route

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

Oct‐18 Nov‐18 Dec‐18 Jan‐19 Feb‐19 Mar‐19 Apr‐19 May‐19 Jun‐19 Jul‐19 Aug‐19 Sep‐19 Oct‐19 Nov‐19

 42X Ridership



 

 

BCRTA Resolution No. 20-01-01 

Updating Board Policy 6-10 Conflict of Interest 
 
 
Whereas BCRTA is a Regional Transit Authority created by resolution of the 
Commissioners of Butler County, Ohio pursuant to Chapter 306 et seq. of the Ohio 
Revised Code; 
 
Whereas the BCRTA is governed by a Board of Trustees that make financial decisions, 
conduct oversight, and may potentially encounter a conflict of interest; and 
 
Whereas on November 19, 2003 the Board adopted Board Policy 6-10 Conflict of 
Interest; 
 
Whereas on November 12, 2010, and May 17, 2017 the Board amended or confirmed 
Board Policy 6-10 Conflict of Interest; and 
 
Whereas the Federal Transit Administration has requested that grantees now clarify 
penalties for violating an agency’s required conflict of interest policy. 
 
Now, therefore be it resolved that the BCRTA Board of Trustees hereby amends Board 
Policy 6-10 Conflict of Interest to include the following section to comply with the 
request of the Federal Transit Administration: 
 

“Penalties  
Failure of any BCRTA official or employee to abide by this Conflict of 
Interest Policy, or to comply with 2 cfr 200.318 and related statutes as 
amended, will result in discipline, which may include dismissal.” 

 
Furthermore, the BCRTA Board of Trustees authorizes the Executive Director to take all 
actions necessary to assure organizational compliance with the terms of this policy. 
 
 
Approved:   January 15, 2020 
 
 
 
________________________    ________________________ 
BCRTA, Board President    BCRTA, Executive Director 
       Matthew M. Dutkevicz 
  



 

 

BCRTA POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL 
 
6-10   Conflict of Interest  
 

Adopted:    November 19, 2003 

Reviewed:  November 17, 2010 

Reviewed Date:  May 17, 2017 

Revised Date: January 15, 2020 

 
Policy Statement 
 
The Trustees and employees of BCRTA owe a duty of loyalty to the BCRTA that 
requires that in serving BCRTA they act, not in their personal interests or in the 
interests of others, but rather solely in the interests of BCRTA. Trustees and 
employees must have undivided allegiance to BCRTA’s mission and may not use 
their positions as Trustees and employees, information they have about BCRTA, 
or BCRTA’s property, in a manner that allows them to secure a pecuniary benefit 
for themselves or their relatives. For the purpose of this policy, a relative is any 
person who is related by blood or marriage, or whose relationship with the 
employee is similar to that of persons who are related by blood or marriage. 

 

General Standards  

 

The conduct of personal business between any Trustee/employee and BCRTA is 
prohibited. Business transactions of BCRTA in which a Trustee/employee has an 
interest shall not be prohibited, but they shall be subject to close scrutiny. Such 
proposed transactions shall be reviewed carefully to determine that they are in 
the best interests of BCRTA and that they will not lead to conflict of interest.  For 
the purposes of this policy, a Trustee/employee has an interest in a proposed 
transaction if he/she has a substantial financial interest in it, or has a substantial 
financial interest in any organization involved in the proposed transaction, or 
holds a position as trustee, director, general manager, or principal officer in any 
such organization.  Prior to the start of any negotiations, or consideration of a 
financial transaction by the BCRTA, Trustees and employees are expected to 
make full disclosure to the best of their knowledge of any dual interest in a 
proposed transaction by submitting a report to the President or other officer 

designated by the Board to handle such matters, supplying any reasons why the 
transaction might not be in the best interest of BCRTA. In matters requiring prior 
approval of the Board of Trustees, the President or other officer shall forward 
copies of this disclosure report to the Board before its approval.   

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

A Trustee with a dual interest in a proposed transaction shall not vote on the 
matter.  Depending upon the circumstances, the Trustee/employee with a dual 
interest in a proposed transaction may be excluded from any discussion of the 
matter.  

 

A Trustee/employee shall not use inside information of BCRTA for his/her 
personal benefit, or use such inside information or his/her position as 
Trustee/employee to the detriment of BCRTA. Inside information is information 
obtained through the Trustee/employee’s position that has not become public 
information. 

 

Each Trustee/employee has a duty to place the interests of BCRTA foremost in 
any dealings involving the BCRTA and has a continuing responsibility to comply 
with the requirements of this Policy. On an annual basis, each Trustee/employee 
is required to complete a Trustee/employee Disclosure Statement (example 
attached). 
 
Penalties  
Failure of any BCRTA official or employee to abide by this Conflict of Interest 
Policy, or to comply with 2 cfr 200.318 and related statutes as amended, will 
result in discipline, which may include dismissal. 
 
 

Annual Disclosure Statement  

 
This Trustee/employee Disclosure Statement is designed to help 
Trustees/employees meet their continuing responsibility to disclose potential 
conflicts of interest. 
 
Part A of the Trustee/employee Disclosure Statement provides instructions that 
should be retained by each Trustee/employee and used as necessary during the 
coming fiscal year to report potential conflicts of interest as they may arise. In 
Part B, you are requested to list all organizations in which you are involved that 
do business with BCRTA. Part C is a year-end report in which you are requested 
to describe any business transactions of BCRTA during the past year in which 
you have had an interest. Parts B and C of this form should be filled in, signed at 
the bottom, and returned to the Board President of BCRTA. 

 

 

 

 

  



 

 

 

 

Part A.  Instructions for Disclosure of Potential Conflicts of Interest  

 

If you have reason to believe that you may have an interest in a proposed 
business transaction of BCRTA, you are requested to prepare a brief letter to the 
Board President or other designated officer describing the proposed transaction, 
your interest in it, and your views, if any, as to why the transaction is, or is not, in 
the best interests of BCRTA. This information should be provided to the Board 
President prior to the opening of any negotiations or discussions concerning the 
transaction. 

 

A Trustee/employee is considered to have an “interest” in a business transaction 
if he or she: (1) has a substantial financial interest in it; or (2) has a substantial 
financial interest in any organization involved in the proposed transaction; or (3) 
holds a position as trustee, director,  general manager, or principal officer in any 
such organization. 

 

A proposed transaction in which a Trustee/employee has an interest will be 
reviewed carefully to ensure that it is in the best interests of BCRTA. The Board 
President or other designated officer may recommend measures to ensure that 
the transaction will not present a conflict of interest or the appearance of a 
conflict of interest. 

 

If there is any question in your mind, whether your interest in a transaction 
warrants disclosure, you should disclose the interest. If you have any questions 
about the application of the Board’s policy on transactions between BCRTA and 
Trustee/employees, please contact BCRTA’s Board President or other 
designated officer. 

  



 

 

Part B.  Organizations Doing Business with BCRTA in Which You Have an 
Interest 

 

In the space below, please list all organizations: (1) in which you have a 
substantial financial interest, or (2) in which you hold a position as trustee, 
director, general manager, or principal officer, if those organizations engage in 
business transactions with BCRTA (including contracts, grants, loans, or other 
transactions), or if you anticipate that they will do business with BCRTA in the 
coming fiscal year. Enter “N/A” if you have no organizations to report. 

 

Name of Organization  Nature of Your Interest in the Organization 

 

 _______________________   _______________________________ 

 _______________________   _______________________________ 

 _______________________   _______________________________ 

 

(Attach additional sheets if necessary) 

 

 

I certify that the above information is correct to the best of my knowledge. 

 

Name of Trustee/employee:  ___ ________________________________  

 

Signature: ___________________________________ 

 

Date: ___________________________________ 

 

 

  



 

 

Part C.  Transactions During the Fiscal Year Ending 12/31/2016 

 

In the space below, please provide a description of any and all business 
transactions of BCRTA during the past fiscal year (1) in which you have had a 
substantial financial interest, or (2) that involve an organization in which you have 
a substantial financial interest, or (3) that involve an organization in which you 
hold a position as trustee, director, general manager, or principal officer. Include 
a brief description of each transaction, and a description of your interest in the 
transaction. Enter “N/A” if you have no transactions to report.   

 

  ____________________________________________________  

  ____________________________________________________  

  ____________________________________________________  

  ____________________________________________________  

 

(Attach additional sheets if necessary.) 

 

I certify that the above information is correct to the best of my knowledge. 

 

Name of Trustee/employee:  ___ ________________________________  

 

Signature: ___________________________________ 

 

Date: ___________________________________ 

     

 

 
 



 

 

BCRTA Resolution No. 20-01-02 

Updating Board Policy 6-03 Procurements 
 
 
Whereas BCRTA is a Regional Transit Authority created by resolution of the 
Commissioners of Butler County, Ohio pursuant to Chapter 306 et seq. of the Ohio 
Revised Code; 
 
Whereas the BCRTA is governed by a Board of Trustees that make financial decisions, 
conduct oversight, and approve large purchases; 
 
Whereas on March 18, 2009 the Board adopted Board Policy 6-03 Procurements; 
 
Whereas on June 15, 2011 the Board revised Board Policy 6-03 Procurements, and on 
May 17, 2017 the Board reviewed Board Policy 6-03Procurements; 
 
Whereas the Federal Transit Administration has issued new guidance and limits on 
procurement thresholds; and 
 
Whereas BCRTA structure has changed significantly since the last review and the 
Executive Director and Treasurer of the Board desire to clarify purchasing responsibility. 
 
Now, therefore be it resolved that the BCRTA Board of Trustees hereby amends Board 
Policy 6-03 Procurements as detailed herein to directly address changes in FTA guidance 
and structural changes within the BCRTA staff. 
 
Furthermore, the BCRTA Board of Trustees authorizes the Executive Director to take all 
actions necessary to assure organizational compliance with the terms of this policy. 
 
 
Approved:   January 15, 2020 
 
 
 
________________________    ________________________ 
BCRTA, Board President    BCRTA, Executive Director 
       Matthew M. Dutkevicz 



 

 

BCRTA POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL 

6-03 Procurements 
 

Effective Date: 03-18-2009 
        Revised Date:  06-15-2011 

Reviewed Date:  05-17-2017 
Revised Date:  01-15-2020 

 
 
Policy Statement 

The BCRTA shall strive to obtain the highest quality and lowest cost on all of its purchases of 
goods and services, while providing a fair return to contractors and suppliers who are efficient, 
progressive and competitive.  As a Federal grantee, BCRTA will adhere to Federal requirements 
to conduct procurement transportations in a manner providing full and open competition. The 
following are required: 

 

1. BCRTA must maintain written procedures that fully reflect BCRTA compliance with 
Federal procurement requirements, including in other procurement-related areas such as 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE), Buy American, and lobbying.  All BCRTA 
personnel involved in procurement transactions must be trained on the procedures and 
document their understanding and commitment to adhere to the established 
requirements.  The procedures will be updated as needed to assure continuing 
compliance with Federal requirements, etc.  

2. BCRTA will include Board Policies No. 6-09 Ethics and No. 6-10 Conflict of Interest within 
the written procedures as standards of conduct governing the performance of Board and 
staff engaged in the award and administration of contracts supported by Federal funds. 

3. BCRTA procedures will adhere to Federal requirements for methods of procurement 
including Micro-Purchases ($310,000 or less); Small Purchases (more than $310,000 but 
not more than $100250,000); Sealed Bid/Invitation for Bid (IFB); Competitive 
Proposals/Request for Proposals (RFP); Architectural and Engineering Services (A&E); 
Revenue Contracts. 

4. BCRTA will require the following approval levels for procurement requisitions as long as 
the expenses are included in the Board-approved operating and capital budgets: 

Micro Purchases <$400: Managers or above or as designated by the 
Executive Director 
 
Micro Purchases Up to $3,000500: Operations Manager or Finance 
ManagerDirectors or above, or as designated by the Executive Director 

Small Purchases Up to $24,999: Executive Director 

Large Purchases $25,000 and over: Board of Trustees. 

 



BCRTA Resolution No: 20-01-03 

Establishing and Supporting Ohio Public Transit Association’s 
“OHIO LOVES TRANSIT DAY.” 

 
Whereas Butler County Regional Transit Authority is a member of the Ohio Public 
Transit Association; 

Whereas over 3 million people in the State of Ohio rely on public transportation every 
weekday; 

Whereas Ohio’s public transportation systems are striving to meet the needs of Ohio’s 
growing senior population and public transit agencies’ specialized services and senior-
friendly vehicles make it easy for older Ohioans to maintain an independent lifestyle;   

Whereas Ohio’s public transit systems provide a vital link to thousands of people with 
disabilities and their family members.  Urban and rural systems help to ensure that 
persons with disabilities can remain actively involved in their communities by providing 
rides to work, job training programs, medical appointments and adult daycare facilities; 

 Whereas Ohio’s public transit systems work for employees and employers by providing 
safe, reliable, and affordable transportation to job sites to ensure that thousands of 
individuals have access to work; 

Whereas Ohio’s public transit systems drive Ohio’s economy by making it easy for 
consumers to visit grocery stores, medical services, pharmacies,  plazas, and other 
shopping venues; and  

Whereas February 14, 2020 will be celebrated as “Ohio Loves Transit Day” across the 
state throughout all participating transit agencies. During this day, all participating 
transit agencies will be giving free rides on all fixed routes. The purpose of this day is to 
celebrate transit and how it is helping to move Ohio forward.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Butler County 
Regional Transit Authority that: 
 

1. February 14, 2020 will be celebrated at “Ohio Loves Transit Day”  
2. Free Rides will be given on all fixed routes buses 

 
Approved:  January 15, 2020 
 
 
________________________   ____________________________ 
BCRTA, Board President                       BCRTA, Executive Director 
      Matthew M. Dutkevicz 



BCRTA Resolution No. 20-01-04 

Authorizing the Executive Director to Execute a Contract for Vinyl 

Vehicle Wrapping. 

Whereas on November 20, 2019, the BCRTA Board of Trustees authorized 2020 operating and capital 

expenditures including preventive maintenance;  

Whereas BCRTA is in need of new and replacement vinyl vehicle wraps to improve visibility and 

identification, comply with contract requirements, and preserve the BCRTA fleet in a state of good 

repair; 

Whereas staff completed an independent cost estimate consistent with best practices and determined a 

reasonable price to be $109,578.72 to wrap or rewrap forty-five (45) vehicles of varying sizes;  

Whereas BCRTA solicited proposals for vehicle wrapping and removal services consistent with best 

procurement practices and FTA regulation; 

Whereas staff evaluated three (3) different bids and reviewed them for responsibility, capability and 

cost; and 

Whereas Luxurious Wraps LLC, of Hamilton, Ohio was determined to be the lowest qualified bidder. 

Now, therefore be it resolved that the BCRTA Board of Trustees hereby authorizes the Executive 

Director to execute a contract to wrap or rewrap fifteen (15) buses, two (2) large cutaways, nineteen 

(19) regular cutaways, and nine (9) modified minivans for a quoted cost of $102,890, including a 10% 

contingency for a total contract not to exceed $113,179. 

Furthermore, the BCRTA Board of Trustees authorizes the Executive Director to take all actions 

necessary to enact the terms of the agreement and this resolution.  

 

Approved: January 15, 2020 

 

_________________________________                           ______________________________________ 

BCRTA, Board President                BCRTA, Executive Director 

Matthew Dutkevicz 



BCRTA Resolution No. 20-01-05 

Authorizing the Executive Director to Execute the Purchase and 

Installation of Mobile Ticketing Validators, Warranties, and Required 

Implementation Services. 

Whereas on November 20, 2019, the BCRTA Board of Trustees authorized 2020 operating and capital 

expenditures including preventive maintenance;  

Whereas applied and received as part of a statewide ask $219,807 in support of hardware and 

associated services for mobile ticketing validators and internal onboard wifi on forty-five (45) vehicles; 

Whereas staff completed an independent cost estimate consistent with best practices and determined a 

reasonable price to be $137,340 for the materials and services needed;  

Whereas BCRTA is a member of NEORide, an Ohio Council of Governments; 

Whereas NEORide has completed a joint procurement available to its members consistent with best 

practices and FTA regulation for the purchase and installation of mobile ticketing validators, warranties, 

and required implementation services; and 

Whereas Masabi LLC of New York, New York has been selected as the vendor as determined by 

NEORide. 

Now, therefore be it resolved that the BCRTA Board of Trustees hereby authorizes the Executive 

Director to execute the purchase and installation of mobile ticketing validators, warranties, and required 

implementation services for at a quoted cost of $137,344 including a 10% contingency for a total 

amount not to exceed $151,078. 

Furthermore, the BCRTA Board of Trustees authorizes the Executive Director to take all actions 

necessary to enact the terms of the agreement and this resolution.  

 

Approved: January 15, 2020 

 

_________________________________                           ______________________________________ 

BCRTA, Board President                BCRTA, Executive Director 

Matthew Dutkevicz 






















	BCRTA Board 01_15_2020 Meeting Notice
	Bcrta Prelim Agenda 1_15_2020
	2019 Board Attendance
	BCRTA Board 11_20_2019 Minutes
	10-2019 Financials
	11-2019 Financials
	Directors Notes JAN 2020
	Directors notes Exhibit 1 - BCRTA EEO Program 2017 update v1.2
	Metrics - as of NOV 2019
	R 20-01-01 COI Update
	R 20-01-02 Procurement Update
	R 20-01-03 Ohio Loves Transit
	R 20-01-04 Vehicle Wraps
	R 20-01-05 Validators
	R 20-01-05 exhibit
	ADP3173.tmp
	PRELIMINARY AGENDA
	I. Call to Order & Roll
	II. Consideration of Absences
	III. Approval of the Agenda (Motion Requested)
	IV. Approval of the November 20, 2019 Meeting Minutes (Motion Requested)
	V. Comments from Citizens
	VI. Secretary/Treasurer’s Report – October & November 2019 (Motion Requested)
	VII. Committee & Staff Reports
	a. OKI
	b. Metrics
	c. Nominating Committee
	VIII. Governance
	a. Oath of Office – Ms. Nancy Schmitt
	b. Election of Officers
	IX. Director’s Report
	a. TABC 5310 Program Application
	b. Future Legislation
	i. EEO Program Update
	X. Action Items
	a. Resolution 20-01-01:  Updating Board Policy 6-10 Conflict of Interest
	c. Resolution 20-01-03:  Establishing and Supporting Ohio Public Transit    Association’s “OHIO LOVES TRANSIT DAY.”
	d. Resolution 20-01-04: Authorizing the Executive Director to Execute a Contract    for Vinyl Vehicle Wrapping.
	e. Resolution 20-01-05: Authorizing the Executive Director to Execute the Purchase    and Installation of Mobile Ticketing Validators, Warranties,    and Required Implementation Services.
	XI. Adjourn (Motion Requested)





